A COMPARISON OF THE SCHOLASTIC SUCCESS OF EMPLOYED AND NONEMPLOYED COLLEGE STUDENTS

A THESIS

SUBMITTED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF

PSYCHOLOGY AND THE GRADUATE COUNCIL OF THE KANSAS STATE TEACHERS COLLEGE OF EMPORIA IN PARTIAL FULFILIMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DECREE OF

MASTER OF SCIENCE

MARTHA^SSCHAFFNER

Approved for the Major Department

10

Ú

И يسم كي لو Approved for the Graduate Council Ų and ~

16 "36 - martha Lehaffree. Le.

Received

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

To Dr. H. E. Schrammel, Director of the Bureau of Educational Measurements of the Kansas State Teachers College of Emporia, the writer desires to acknowledge her sincere gratitude for the suggestion of the problem, direction, advice, and assistance in the writing of this thesis.

To Dr. Edwin J. Brown, Director of the Graduate Division of the Kansas State Teachers College, who assisted in the direction of the study, the writer is indebted.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPT	ER PI	\GE
I.	INTRODUCTION	1
	The Problem	1
	Related Studies	1
	Scope of the Study	5
	Purpose of the Study	5
	Control of the Study	5
	Procedure	6
	Sources of Data	8
	Organization of Succeeding Chapters	9
II.	PREVALENCE OF THE REEDY COLLECE STUDENT IN	
	AMERICA	10
III.	THE SCHOLASTIC SUCCESS OF THE STUDENTS OF THE	
	THREE CLASSES OF WORKERS	16
	Control of Academic Classification	16
	Control of the Sex Factor	18
	Decile Groups	19
	The Median Mark Index	20
	Critical Ratios	23
	Summery and Conclusions	27
IV.	THE SCHOLASTIC SUCCESS OF STUDENTS ENGAGING	
	IN THE THREE TYPES OF NON-ACADEMIC WORK	30
	Control of the Sex Factor	33

CHAPTER

	Control of Academic Classification	1
	Decile Groups 34	4
	Median Mark Indices and Critical Ratio Values . 3	5
	Summary and Conclusions	3
۷.	SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS	3
BIBLI	DGRAPHY	3
INDEX		7

v

PAGE

LIST OF TABLES

TABLE		PAGE
I.	Percentage of Working and Non-working Students	
	on Probation at the University of Kentucky	
	the First Semester of 1924-1925	4
II.	Amount of Self-help in Teachers College in	
	1928	11
III.	Number and Per cent of Working and Non-working	
	Students at the Kansas State Teachers College	
	the second Semester of the Academic Year	
	1934-1935	14
IV.	Distribution of Cases in the Classes of Workers	
	According to Academic Classification	17
V.	Distribution of Cases in the Classes of Workers	
	According to Sex	18
VI.	Distribution of Ceses in the Decile Groups for	
	Each Class of Worker	20
VII.	Median Mark Index and Probable Error of Each	
	Class of Worker	23
VIII.	Comparison of the Scholastic Success of the	
	Classes of Workers in Terms of Critical	
	Ratio Values	25
IX.	Distribution of Cases in the Types of Workers	
	According to Academic Clessification	32

TABLE

ABLE		PAGE
x.	Distribution of Cases in the Types of Workers	
	According to Sex	33
XI.	Distribution of Cases in the Decile Groups for He	ch

CHAPTER I

INTRODUCTION

THE PROBLEM

For many years the question of what effect engaging in non-actdemic work as a means of partial or entire self-support while attending college has been discussed. In particular, the effect of working upon scholastic achievement has been generally questioned. Does a student's actdemic success suffer, improve, or remain unchanged because of time and effort expended upon earning his livelihood?

Every year students throughout the country are faced with the dilemma of whether to borrow, work while attending school, or refrain from entering until fully capable of paying outright for their education.

There has been a great deal written concerning the problem, but a large part of the material available is merely subjective opinion.

RELATED STUDIES

Some studies, such as the one by Wilson, represent more than opinion. The report of this investigation which was made at Columbia follows:¹

¹ Calvin Dill Wilson, Working One's Way Through College and University (Chicago: A. C. McClurg & Co., 1912), p. 134.

"An investigation was made of the records of all the students in Columbia College who had applied to the committee for work during the academic year--ninety-two in number--and the standing of these students was compared with that of an equal number of other college students selected at random. The result showed that the general average standing of the Employment Committee students is somewhat higher than that of the other students. We concluded that this is due more to their earnestness of purpose than to superior ability. Conversation with the men themselves would seem to bear out this conclusion, for they state that the outside employment forces them to more intense applicetion in the preparation for their daily academic tasks. In other words, the higher marks may represent harder intellectual work, not necessarily stronger intellectuality.

A lack of controlling the investigation makes this study subjective; although, no doubt, it is more valuable than mere opinion. The scope of the study is small, the investigation including only 184 cases.

According to Crawford:² "Provided a student does not overdo self-support, there is no reason why he cannot stand well in his class, scholastically and generally, if he is the sort of person who would do so anyway."

Fallows³ has a favorable word to say for the student who works in regard to his "intellectual glory."

Among those who consider working, especially self-support detrimental to scholastic success are Fresident Conant⁴ of

2 Albert Beecher Crawford, "The scholarship racket." The Saturdey Evening Post, 107:104, April 6, 1935.

³ Alice Kutharine Fellows, "Working one's way through college." The Century Magazine, 40:324, July, 1901.

4 Albert Beecher Crawford, op. cit., p. 104.

Hervard, the President of 3t. Lawrence University,⁵ Sharpe,⁶ end Miss Fallows.⁷ Miss Fallows states that women suffer more intellectually than do man when faced with the necessity of earning money while attending college.

Canon⁸ considered the problem from the viewpoint of the comparative percentages of working and non-working students on probation. Table I summarizes his findings. As may be observed in Table I, there were 2.15 per cent more working freshmen on probation than non-working freshmen; 13.45 per cent more working sophomores on probation than non-working sophomores; 7.93 per cent less working juniors on probation than non-working juniors; and 4.52 per cent more working seniors on probation than non-working seniors.

In conclusion Canon states: 9

Ignoring other factors, it seems that the freshman program might be left as it was; the sophomores should

⁵ Orlando F. Lewis, "The self-supporting student in American colleges." <u>The North American Review</u>, 179:725, November, 1904.

⁶ Russel T. Sharpe, "College and the poor boy." Atlantic Monthly, 151:701, June, 1933.

⁷ Alice Katharine Fallows, "Working one's way through women's colleges." <u>The Century Magazine</u>, 40:524, 340, July, 1901.

⁸ Ernest H. Canon, <u>Some Studies in the Registrar's</u> Office, (unpublished Masters thesis, University of Kentucky, Lexington, Kentucky, 1925), p. 59.

⁹ Ibid., p. 61.

not carry so much outside work; the juniors could be allowed to take on additional hours of outside work; while the seniors should be advised not to engage in as much outside work.

TABLE I*

PERCENTAGE OF WORKING AND NON-WORKING STUDENTS ON PROBATION AT THE UNIVERSITY OF KENTUCKY THE FIRST SEMESTER OF 1924-1925

Classification	% Workers on probation	% Non-workers on probation	Difference
Freshmen	40.84	38.69	2.15
Sophomores	35.57	19.12	16.45
Juniors	19.56	27.49	-7.93
Seniors	15.21	10.69	4.52

Read table thus: Of the freshmen workers 40.84 per cent were on probation, of the freshmen non-workers 38.59 per cent were on probation; or a difference of 2.15 per cent; etc.

No mention of the controlling of such factors as intelligence, age, sex, or number of academic hours carried was made by Canon.¹⁰ His conclusions, in which he "ignores other

* Data from Ernest H. Canon, Some Studies in the Registrar's Office (unpublished Masters thesis, University of Kentucky, Lexington, Kentucky, 1925), p. 59.

10 Ibid., p. 61.

factors" are, therefore, of questionable validity.

After viewing the work that had been done in the field, it was felt that there was a need for a statistical treatment of the problem.

SCOPE OF THE STUDY

This study is based primarily on the median grades, the decile rank and the amount of non-academic work of six hundred and ten students attending the Kansas State Teachers College of Emporia, at Emporia, Kansas, the second semester of the academic year 1934-1935.

PURPOSE OF THE STUDY

The purpose of the study was to determine statistically, insofar as was possible: (1) The scholastic standing of the non-working, the moderate working, and the hard working students; (2) the scholastic standing of the C. S. E. P. (College Students' Educational Project) workers, the State workers, and the non-campus workers; (3) the reliability of the differences obtained; and (4) the advisability of working or not working while attending college as indicated by the results of the study.

CONTROL OF THE STUDY

In an attempt to insure validity of the study, several factors other than the experimental ones were controlled. The

factors controlled were decile ranking, age, academic classification (freshman, sophomore, junior, and senior), academic load or number of hours carried, and sex of the students.

Comparable per cents of the various experimental groups were placed in the different decile ranks. Cases that deviated excessively from the average ages of the freshmen, sophomores, juniors, and seniors were excluded from the study; the freshmen over twenty, the sophomores over twenty-two, the juniors over twenty-four and the seniors over twenty-six years of age were thrown out. Equivalent per cents of freshmen, sophomores, juniors, and seniors were used in the experimental groups. Students carrying less than twelve hours of academic work were excluded from the study. The sex of the students in the experimental groups was also considered.

It has been assumed in this study that teachers' marks are valid criteria for evaluating the scholastic achievement of college students.

PROCEDURE

The procedure followed consisted in obtaining data establishing the number of hours of non-academic work performed, the average grade each atudent made, and the decile rank for each case of the study.

A division into three groups, based upon number of hours worked per week, was then made. The groups were:

Class A, non-workers, zero to three hours per week; class B, moderate workers, six to twenty-one hours per week; and class C, which will be referred to as hard, persistent, or arduous workers, twenty-four hours per week and over.

In each of the three groups the cases were then divided according to decile rank. The median mark indices for each decile in each of the three groups and the median mark indices for all the cases in each of the three groups were computed. The median mark index was found by determining the median of the average grades of the cases under consideration.

From the quartile deviations, the probable errors of the median mark indices were established. Then the reliabilities of the differences between the median mark indices and the algebraic differences existing between the median mark indices were computed. Next, the critical ratio, which is the ratio of the algebraic difference of the medians to the reliability of the difference between the two medians, was calculated. Finally, the chances of a true difference greater than zero existing between the two medians were determined by means of Table XV in Garrett.¹¹

Another division according to type of work engaged in was made, the divisions being as previously indicated, C. S. E. P. workers, State workers, and non-campus workers. A

¹¹ Henry E. Garrett, <u>Statistics in Psychology and</u> Education (New York: Longmans, Green and Co., 1926), p. 135.

similar, though limited, treatment to the one recorded above was given these groups.

SOURCES OF DATA

Data concerning non-academic work performed were tabulated from a survey composed by Dr. H. E. Schrammel, Director of the Bureau of Educational Measurements at the Kansas State Teachers College. This survey, which included seven pages of matter of an informational character, was administered by C. S. E. P. workers who had been carefully instructed regarding the administration of this particular survey. Individual attention was given to each student answering the questions.

The questions asked which had to do with non-academic work included: Do you work for your room? Do you work for your board? Do you work at home? Do you work for the State? Do you work under the C. S. E. P.? Do you work elsewhere? The number of hours per month worked for the State and under the C. S. E. P. were indicated; and the number of hours per week for the other types of employment were shown.

The average grades of the students considered were computed from data from the records of the office of the registrar of the college. All college courses offering credit except physical education were included.

The decile ranks of the students were obtained from files in the Bureau of Measurements. The decile rank is determined by scores made on the entrance examinations. The examinations consist of a battery of tests including a college entrance test, an English test, a vocabulary test, a reading test, a spelling test, and a mathematics test. The students are divided into ten groups or deciles, decile X being the highest group and decile I being the lowest group.

ORGANIZATION OF SUCCEEDING CHAPTERS

In Chapter II a short history of the prevalence of the needy college student in America is set forth. In Chapter III a comparison is made of the scholastic success of non-working students and the two classes of working students at the Kansas State Teachers College. The scholastic success at the Kansas State Teachers College of the various types of workers--the C. S. E. P., the State, and the non-campus--is the basis for the comparison in Chapter IV. The results of the study are summarized in Chapter V.

CHAPTER II

PREVALENCE OF THE NEEDY COLLEGE STUDENT IN AMERICA

A brief history of the prevelence of the needy college student in American colleges serves to show the value in determining the effect of non-academic work upon scholastic success. A survey of the number of working students at the Kansas State Teachers College of Emporie the second semester, 1934-1935, indicates how the Teachers College compares with other colleges in this respect.

As early as 1653 American colleges began to solve the financial problems of needy students. Hervard in that year gave Zacheriah Bridgen a job "ringeing the bell and waytinge on table."¹ Through the succeeding years unorganized essistance was provided. By the beginning of the twentieth century, the group of needy students had become so large that official attention was demanded.

President Lowell pointed out to his alumni in 1909 that Hervard was to a large extent a poor man's college, that there was a good deal of suffering and want, that many students were insufficiently clothed and not a small number insufficiently fed.² In order to help needy students, the

1 Russell T. Sharpe, "College and the poor boy." Atlentic Monthly, 151:697, June, 1933.

2 Loc. cit.

colleges built up scholarships and loan funds, and also organized employment bureaus.

Table II shows the amount of self-help in forty-nine teachers colleges in 1928. It may be observed that of the

TABLE II*

AMOUNT OF SELF-HELP IN TEACHERS COLLY HE IN 1928

No. of Teachers Colleges	Sex of Students	Number Enrolled	No. of Self-help	Fer cent of Self-helpers
49	Male	12,616	3,518	28
	Female	35,485	5,431	15
	Total	48,101	8,949	19

Read table thus: Of the students in the 49 teachers colleges considered, 12,616 were males of which 3,518 or 28 per cent were self-helpers; etc.

48,101 cases considered 19 per cent were self-help students. Furthermore it may be seen that 15 per cent of the females and 28 per cent of the males contributed toward their expenses by working while attending college.

* Data from Walter J. Greenleaf, Self-help for College Students, Bulletin (1929), No. 2, (Washington: United States Government Frinting Office, 1929), p. 61. According to Sharpe,³ by 1927 one-third of the American college students were looking for employment. Reynolds,⁴ however, estimated that in 1927, 55 per cent were wholly or partly self-supporting; 12.5 per cent were earning all their expenses; and 25 per cent were earning 50 per cent or more of their total expenses. He further stated that 20.90 per cent of the men and 68.81 per cent of the women attending state universities earned nothing toward their support.

Greenleaf, in a wook published in 1930, stated that in a total of ninety-six teachers colleges the average expense of attending school for nine months is \$335; that a fourth of the men and a sixth of the women work during term time; and that 11 per cent of the men and 4 per cent of the women are entirely self-supporting.⁵

He further stated that 763 colleges and universities which keep records of work among students, estimated that 46 per cent of the men and 23 per cent of the women earn all or a part of their expenses. These 763 institutions enroll 84

3 Loc. cit.

4 O. Edgar Reynolds, The Social and Economic Status of College Students, Bulletin (1927), No. 272, (New York: Bureau of Publications, Teachers College, Columbia University, 1927), pp. 26-27.

⁵ Walter J. Greenleaf, "Self-supporting college students." <u>Life in College</u>, Christian Gauss, (New York: Charles Scribner's Sons, 1930), p. 269.

per cent of all college students in the United States."

Figures compiled by Thompson in 1932 estimated that 50 per cent of the men students were earning a major portion of their expenses while studying in universities and colleges.⁷

In a survey made in March, 1933, at the University of Colorado, it was found that 42.3 per cent of all men in the university were employed and that 18.5 per cent of the women were employed while in school.⁸

Table III shows the number and per cent of working and non-working students at the Kansas State Teachers College the second semester of the academic year 1934-1935. Data were available on only 610 students out of the total enrollment of 1411.

As may be observed in Table III, 75.61 per cent of the male students earned part or all of their college expenses, 51.35 per cent of the female students earned part or all of their college expenses, and 59.30 per cent of all the students considered worked while attending school. The per cents are higher, both in the case of the male and female students, than

⁶ Ibid., p. 267.

7 warren E. Thompson, "College youth discusses itself." New Outlook, 161:42, December, 1932.

8 Fred E. Aden, "Some facts related to student life as found in a survey at the University of Colorado, March, 1933." School and Society, 39:182, February 10, 1934.

TABLE III

	ing in the strange of the line of the strange of the	Trankan Marine and San Jacking	under an and an and an and the	NIMPERSON AND ADDRESS				Augusta and a sub-average states in the		
Sex	No. of cases	Cla	88 A		Renge					
		NT A	T.	Cla	sa B	Cla	ss C	TO	tal	
an a		11.0.0	10	No.	%	No.	×.	No.	%	idoard Ribert
Male	201	49	24.39	101	50.24	51	25.37	152	75.61	
Female	409	199	48.65	157	38.39	53	12.96	210	51.35	
Total	610	248	40.70	258	42.30	104	17.00	362	59.30	
			1							

NUMBER AND PER CENT OF WORKING AND NON-WORKING STUDENTS AT THE KANSAS STATE TEACHERS COLLEGE THE SECOND SEMESTER OF THE ACADEMIC YEAR 1934-1935

Read table thus: Of the 201 males 49 or 24.39 per cent were non-workers; 101 or 50.24 were moderate workers; 51 or 25.37 per cent were hard workers; and 152 or 75.61 worked; etc.

are the per cents of the employed students as found in the various investigations recorded above. This difference is no doubt at least partly due to the innovation of the C. S. E. P. in February, 1934. The above surveys were made before 1934. Another factor, which may have been influential in making for a high per cent of working students, is the presence in the working groups of resident students who worked at home.

It may further be observed in Table III that 25.37 per cent of the male students, 12.96 per cent of the female students and 17.00 per cent of all the students worked twentyfour or more hours per week. This group may be considered, if not completely, at least almost completely self-supporting. Again, as in the case of all the workers, K. B. T. C. has a higher per cent of students employed in this group than do the groups investigated by Reynolds and Greenleaf.

Thus, it would seem that the prevalence of employed students in American colleges justifies a serious consideration of the effect upon scholastic achievement of working while in school.

CHAPTER III

THE SCHOLASTIC SUCCESS OF THE STUDENTS OF THE THREE CLASSES OF WORKERS

As has been previously indicated, the three classes of workers considered in this part of the study are: Class A, which includes students working from zero to three hours a week; class B, which is composed of students who work from six to twenty-one hours a week; and class C, which consists of those students who engage in non-academic work twenty-four or more hours a week. The scholastic success of the three classes of workers, in terms of median mark indices and critical ratio values, is determined in this chapter.

As may have been noted, neutral zones were set up in order to separate groups. Students considered as being in the neutral zone between class A and class B were those who worked either four or five hours a week; whereas the neutral zone between class B and class C included students working twenty-two or twenty-three hours a week. The cases falling in the neutral zones were excluded from the study.

CONTROL OF A CADEMIC CLASSIFICATION

In Table IV, Distribution of Cases in the Classes of Workers According to Academic Classification, it may be observed that similar per cents of freshmen, sophomores, juniors and seniors appear in each of the three classes. The deviation of the per cent of freshmen in class A (non-workers) from the per cent of freshmen in the entire study is 6 per cent; in class B (moderate workers) the deviation is 2 per cent; and in class C (persistent workers) the deviation is 7 per cent. Likewise, the sophomores of class A and class B deviate by 1 per cent each and in class C the deviation in zero; the juniors of class A deviate by 4 per cent, and of class B and class C by 2 per cent each; the seniors of class A and class B deviate by 1 per cent, and of class C by 5 per cent. The deviations of the various per cents are low in all cases. This means that the distribution, according to college classification is practically the same for the three divisions of non-academic workers.

TABLE IV

ng a fan de f	Total Cases							01600.0	
Group	No of Cases	<i>G</i> eo	No.	s A	No.	s n %	NO.	a ∪ ≪	
Freshman Sophomore Junior Jenior Total	320 166 71 53 610	52 27 12 9	145 65 20 18 248	58 26 8 8	128 73 36 21 258	50 28 14 8	47 28 15 14 104	45 27 14 14	

DISTRIBUTION OF CASES IN THE CLASSES OF WORKERS ACCORDING TO ACADEMIC CLASSIFICATION

Read table thus: Of the 320 freshmen, composing 52 per cent of the cases, 145 were in class A, 128 were in class B and 47 were in class C; 58 per cent of class A were freshmen; etc.

CONTROL OF THE SEX FACTOR

Since the number of cases in the study would have been appreciably decreased if the exact per cents of men and women were placed in class A, class B, and class C, it was necessary to determine if sex influenced grades to any great extent in this study.

It was found that the average grade received by the men was 2.74, by the women was 2.67 and by all the cases 2.70. Thus it is seen that the women made a slightly better average grade than did the men, the difference being only .07. The average decile ranks for the male, female and total cases were identical.

In Table V, Distribution of Cases in the Classes of

TABLE V

	Total C	ases						
Group	No. of	Ŗ	Class A		Class B		Class C	
	Cases		No.	%	No.	9	NO.	¶₀
Male	201	33	49	20	101	39	51	49
Female	409	67	199	80	157	61	53	51
Total	610		248		258		104	

DISTRIBUTION OF CASES IN THE CLASSES OF WORKERS ACCORDING TO SEX

Read table thus: Of the 201 males, 49 were in class A, 101 were in class B and 51 were in class C; 33 per cent of the total cases were males; etc.

Workers According to Sex, it may be noted that 20 per cent of class A (non-workers), 39 per cent of class B (moderate workers), and 49 per cent of class C (arduous workers) were men. Furthermore, 33 per cent of the total number of cases were men. Thus, class A deviated by 13 per cent from the per cent of men in the entire study, class B by 6 per cent and class C by 16 per cent. Moreover, as might be expected, Table V indicates that as the number of hours of work per week increases the per cent of male students increases, whereas the per cent of female students decreases.

DECILE GROUPS

Table VI shows the distribution of cases in the decile groups for each class of worker. It may be observed that the three classes of workers were represented with a reasonable degree of uniformity in the decile groups.

The per cents in class A (non-workers) range from 8.1 per cent in decile I, to 11.3 per cent in deciles III and IV. The per cents in class B (moderate workers) range from 7.4 in decile III, to 12.8 in deciles VI and X. The per cents in class C (hard workers) range from 4.8 in decile I, to 16.3 in decile X.

The per cent of class A in decile X is 8.9 and the per cent of class C in decile X is 16.3; this represents the greatest difference between two classes in one decile. On the

other hand, there is no difference between the per cents of class A and class B in decile V, as both are 10 per cent; this represents the least difference between two classes in one decile. Thus, the differences range from 7.4 to 0.

TABLE VI

Decile	No.	Class A		Class P		Class C	
	Cases	No.	9k	No.	%	No.	,
X	72	-22	8.9	33	12.8	17	16.3
IX	70	25	10.0	32	12.4	13	12.5
VIII	55	22	8.9	24	9.3	9	8.7
VII	63	27	10.9	26	10.0	.10	9.6
VI	66	24	9.7	33	12.8	9	8.7
V	64	25	10.0	26	10.0	13	12.5
IV	60	28	11.3	23	8.9	9	8.7
III	55	28	11.3	19	7.4	8	7.7
ĪĪ	59	27	10.9	21	8.2	11	10.5
Ī	46	20	8.1	21	8.2	5	4.8
Total	610	248		258		104	

DISTRIBUTION OF CASES IN THE DECILE GROUPS FOR EACH CLADS OF MORKER

Read table thus: Of the 72 cases in decile X, 22 of the cases were in class A, 33 in class B, and 17 in class C; 8.9 per cent of class A, 12.8 per cent of class B, and 16.3 per cent of class C were in decile X; etc.

THE MEDIAN MARK INDEX

In order to find the median mark indices, it was necessary to convert all grades into numerical values. The letter system of grading at the Kensas State Teachers College is as follows: A, superior; B, good; C, average; D, poor; and F, failure. Numerical values were given to the letter grades as follows: A, one point; B, two points; C, three points; D, four points; and F, five points. In finding the mark indices, the grades were assigned numerical values, these values were then multiplied by the number of hours credit for each grade, the products were added and then the sum was divided by the total number of hours credit. For example, if a student had the following scholastic record: 5 hours of A's, 3 hours of B's, 3 hours of C's, 2 hours of D's, and 2 hours of F's, he would have a mark index of 2.53; since the following calculations would be made: $5 \times 1+3 \times 2+3 \times 3+2 \times 4+2 \times 5+15=2.53$.

After the mark indices were found for all the cases in each group, the medians of each of the decile groups in the three classes, and the medians for the total cases in each of the three classes were calculated. The medians so found were called the median mark indices. The quartile deviations were calculated, and the P. E.'s of the medians were evaluated.

In Table VII, Median Mark Index and Probable Error of Each Class Worker, it may be observed that students in class B (6 to 21 hours of work per week) rank first with a median mark index of 2.64, students in class C (24 hours of work per week and over) rank second with a median mark index of 2.65, and students in class A (0 to 3 hours of work per week) rank third with an index of 2.83.

TABLE VII

Decile Rank	No. of cases	Class A	Class B	Class C
X IX VIII VII VI VI IV IV IV IV IV IV IV IV	72 70 55 63 66 64 60 55 59 46 610	$\begin{array}{c} 2.11 \pm .07 \\ 2.33 \pm .13 \\ 2.50 \pm .11 \\ 2.58 \pm .09 \\ 2.89 \pm .07 \\ 3.03 \pm .10 \\ 2.85 \pm .07 \\ 2.95 \pm .06 \\ 3.15 \pm .10 \\ 3.17 \pm .07 \\ 2.83 \pm .03 \end{array}$	$2.08 \pm .11$ $2.30 \pm .07$ $2.60 \pm .11$ $2.53 \pm .10$ $2.58 \pm .07$ $2.93 \pm .08$ $3.03 \pm .15$ $2.90 \pm .10$ $2.94 \pm .08$ $3.42 \pm .07$ $2.64 \pm .03$	$2.04 \pm .17$ $2.50 \pm .14$ $2.23 \pm .18$ $2.50 \pm .32$ $2.53 \pm .07$ $3.08 \pm .14$ $2.90 \pm .17$ $3.00 \pm .18$ $2.72 \pm .16$ $3.65 \pm .15$ $2.65 \pm .03$
Total Cases	610	248	258	104

MEDIAN MARK INDEX AND PROBABLE ERROR OF EACH CLASS OF WORKER

Read table thus: In decile X class A had a median mark of 2.11 with a probable error of $\pm .07$, class B had a median mark of 2.08 with a probable error of $\pm .11$, and class C had a median mark of 2.04 with a probable error of $\pm .17$; etc.

In considering the decile groups: Class B ranks first in three of the decile groups, second in five and third in two--having an average rank of 1.9; class B ranks first in five, second in one and third in four--having an average rank of 1.9; and class A ranks first in two, second in four and third in four--having an average rank of 2.2. Thus, in the consideration of the median marks by decile groups, class B

ପାଣ ବୃତ୍ତା'' ବିହ ବନ୍ତ୍ର ଓ ଅ ମୁଣ୍ଡ ଓ ଅ

23

and class C tie for first with a rank of 1.5, and class C has a rank of 3.

The P. L.'s for the decile groups range from approximately one-eighth as large as the median in class C. decile VII. to approximately one-thirty-seventh as large as the median in class B. decile VI. The P. E.'s for the medians of the total cases in all the classes is ± .03. In classes B and C, the P. E. is about one-eighty-eighth as large as the median, and in class C about one-ninety-fourth as large as the median. This signifies that the medians are highly reliable.

For the total cases in class B, the chances are even that the obtained median of 2.64 does not differ from the true median by more than ±.03. Moreover, since 4 P. E. includes practically all of the cases in a normal distribution, it is certain (the chances are 99 in 100) that the true median lies within the limits 2.64 ± 4 x .03, or between 2.76 and 2.52. Similarly, it is certain that the true median for class C lies within the limits 2.65±4 x .03, or between 2.77 and 2.53. Likewise, for class A the true median would fall within the limits 2.8314 x .03, or between 2.95 and 2.71.

CRITICAL RATIOS

The critical ratio is a ratio of the obtained difference between the median mark index of the two classes compared and the F. E. of the difference of the medians. The P. E. of the

difference of the medians is calculated from the formula: $PE(diff.) = \sqrt{PE^2(mdn.1)^+ FE^2(mdn.2)}$, in which PE(mdn.1) and PE(mdn.2) are the P. E.'s of the two obtained medians.

A ratio of 4.0 or higher shows complete reliability of the measures compared; i. e., it signifies that there are 100 chances in 100 that a true difference exists. Ratios of less than 4.0 show reliabilities from 50 chances in 100, or a mere chance difference, to 99 chances in 100. Thus, a critical ratio of 1.0 signifies 75 chances in 100 of the existence of a true difference; one of 2.0, 91 chances in 100; and one of 3.0, 98 chances in 100.

The data in Table VIII may be interpreted as follows: For the total cases in the various classes, class B (moderate workers) exceeds class A (non-workers) with a critical ratio of 4.48, or a reliability of 100 chances in 100; class C (persistent workers) exceeds class A with a critical ratio of 4.24, or a reliability of 100 chances in 100; and class B exceeds class C with a critical ratio of .24, or a reliability of 57 chances in 100.

In the decile groups the following cases had critical ratios of 1.2 (or over), or had a reliability of at least 80 chances in 100: In decile IX, class B exceeds class C with a critical ratio of 1.28, or a reliability of 81 chances in 100; in decile VIII, class C exceeds class A with a critical ratio of 1.28, or a reliability of 81 chances in 100; in

TABLE VIII

Decile Rank	B and A	C and A	Ç and B
X IX VIII VII VI VI VI IV IV III II I	.23 .20 64* .37 3.13 .78 -1.09 .43 1.64 -2.53	.38 89 1.28 .24 3.64 29 27 26 2.28 -2.90	.20 -1.28 1.75 .09 .51 93 .57 48 1.23 -1.39
Total	4.48	4.24	24

COMPARISON OF THE SCHOLASTIC EUCCESS OF THE CLASSES OF WORKERS IN TERMS OF CRITICAL RATIO VALUES

Read table thus: In decile X class B exceeds class A with a critical ratio of .23; class C exceeds class A with a critical ratio of .38; etc.

decile VIII, class C exceeds class B with a critical ratio of 1.75, or a reliability of 88 chances in 100; in decile VI, class B exceeds class A with a critical ratio of 3.13, or a reliability of 98 chances in 100; in decile VI, class C exceeds class A with a critical ratio of 3.64, or a reliability of 99 chances in 100; in decile II, class B exceeds class A

* A critical ratio preceded by a minus sign denotes that the second-named class exceeds the first-named class. No sign denotes that the first-named class ranks first.

25

with a critical ratio of 1.64, or a reliability of 87 chances in 100; in decile II, class C exceeds class A with a critical ratio of 2.28, or a reliability of 94 chances in 100; in decile II, class C exceeds class B with e critical ratio of 1.23, or a reliability of 80 chances in 100; in decile I, class A exceeds class B with a critical ratio of 2.53, or a reliability of 95 chances in 100; in decile I, class A exceeds class C with a critical ratio of 2.90, or a reliability of 97 chances in 100; and in decile I, class B exceeds class C with a critical ratio of .24, or a reliability of 57 chances in 100.

It should be stated that the signs of the critical ratios were altered so that when class A exceeded class B (or any other class exceeded another) it meant that the students in class A had a better scholastic record than the students of class B; 1. e., had a lower median mark index. Before the change, if A exceeded B, A had a larger median mark index, and hence a lower scholastic record.

In Table VIII it may be observed that in seven of the decile groups class B exceeded class A, in five of the decile groups class C exceeded class A, and in six of the decile groups class C exceeded class B. Also, it may be noted that in decile I as the amount of non-academic work increased, the scholastic record lowered (the critical ratio values are all negative); whereas the reverse is true in both deciles X and II (the

critical ratios are all positive.)

Thus, considering the total cases in each group, it has been shown that the working students, both of class B and of class C, exceed the non-working students in scholastic success; and also that the reliability of the difference between the medians is highly significant. This may be due to the presence, in the working groups, of State and Federal employees who are required to attain an average scholastic record; or to more intense application or greater seriousness of purpose on the part of the working students. Furthermore, it may be concluded that students who work from six to twenty-one hours a week have a more chance to exceed in scholastic success students who work twenty-four hours a week or more. The reliability of the difference between the medians of the two working groups is not significent.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

1. The rankings of the three classes of workers for the total cases in each class were as follows: Class B, composed of students working from six to twenty-one hours a week, ranked first; class C, composed of students working twentyfour or more hours a week, ranked second; and class A, composed of non-working students, ranked third in scholastic achievement. The rankings of the classes in the decile groups which had high reliability agreed with the rankings for the total cases in each class. Class B exceeded class C only slightly. Classes B and C may have exceeded class A because of the presence in the former groups of State and Federal workers who are required to attain at least an average scholastic record. A greater seriousness of purpose and more intense application on the part of the working students might also have influenced the rankings.

2. The critical ratios for the total cases in each class ranged from 4.48 or complete reliability, to 0.24 or very low reliability. The critical ratios in the decile groups ranged from 3.64 or high reliability to 0.09 or exceedingly low reliability. The P. E.'s of the medians in about two-thirds of the divisions within the decile groups were greater than the differences between the medians. Significant comparisons were made with all decile groups combined.

3. There was a uniform distribution of cases from the classes of workers in the decile groups; hence, the classes were similar in regard to ability as measured by college entrance examinations.

4. As the number of hours of work a week increased, the per cent of male students in the groups increased; however, it was found that the scholastic success of the males and females in this study differed but slightly. Therefore, it may be concluded that sex was not an influential factor in determining the rankings of the classes of workers.

5. Distribution of cases in the classes according to academic classification was uniform; hence, academic classification was not a determining factor of the rankings of the classes.

CHAPTER IV

THE SCHOLASTIC SUCCESS OF STUDENTS ENGAGING IN THE THREE TYPES OF NON-ACADEMIC WORK

In the course of this study, the question arose as to whether the type of non-academic work engaged in influenced scholastic achievement. Consequently, in an attempt to answer the question, the working students were divided into the following three types: Type I, off the campus or non-campus workers, including students who worked at home, for their room and board, or for some employer other than the State and Federal governments; type II, State workers; and type III, C. S. E. P. (College Students' Educational Project) workers, who are also referred to as Federal workers. The solution of the problem involved the establishment of median mark indices and critical ratio values for each type of worker.

The following regulations governed both State and C. S. H. P. student employees at the Kansas State Teachers College the second semester 1934-1935: (1) The maximum amount any student is to receive for one month's service shall be \$25; (2) a student shall not be employed in more than one position, place, or department at a given time; and (3) student assistants must be enrolled in and satisfactorily (a "C" average) carrying a minimum of twelve hours of college credit courses exclusive of physical training practice. Students enrolled in additional courses above the minimum requirement must be passing at all times in all courses. Students who do not meet this requirement are to be relieved from employment until such failure or failures are made up.

Although the regulations governing the State and the C. S. E. P. working students were identical, the selection of the employees for the two types differed in that the heads of the various departments selected State and students to work for them, but the C. S. E. P. workers were appointed to jobs by the Employment Committee. Furthermore, the State workers were not required to sign a sworn statement saying that without the aid given them they would be unable to attend college, whereas the C. S. E. P. employees were required to sign such a statement.

Thus, it is seen that the type I (State) and type II (Federal) workers were under the necessity of attaining at least an average scholastic record, whereas the type III (noncampus) workers were under no such requirement.

CONTROL OF ACADEMIC CLASSIFICATION

In Table IX, Distribution of Cases in the Types of Workers According to Academic Classification, it may be observed that similar per cents of freshmen, sophomores, juniors, and seniors appear in each of the three types. The deviation of the per cent of freshmen in type I (non-campus employees) from the per cent of freshmen in the entire study is 0.7 per cent; in type II (State employees) the deviation is 11.7 per cent; and in type III (C. S. E. F. employees) the deviation is 14.7 per cent. Likewise, the sophomores of type I deviate by 0.1 per cent; of type II by 4.3 per cent; and of type III by 4.4 per cent. The deviation of the per cent of juniors of type I from the per cent of juniors in the total number of cases is 2.1 per cent; of type II, 0.7 per cent; and of type III, 4.3 per cent. Similarly the seniors of type I deviate by 1.3 per cent; of type II by 8.1 per cent; and of type III by 6 per cent.

TABLE IX

Group	Total cases		- Twne T		WTRA TT		TTT TT	
	No. of cases	%	No.	<i>%</i>	No.	%	No.	₹.
Freshman Sophomore Junior Senior Total	175 101 51 35 362	48.3 27.9 14.1 9.7	91 53 31 16 191	47.6 27.8 16.2 8.4	33 29 12 16 90	36.6 32.2 13.4 17.8	51 19 8 3 81	63.0 23.5 9.8 3.7

DISTRIBUTION OF CASES IN THE TYPES OF WORKERS ACCORDING TO ACADEMIC CLASSIFICATION

Read table thus: Of the 175 freshmen, 91 were type I, 33 were type II, and 51 were type III; of the total cases, 48.3 per cent were freshmen, 27.9 per cent were sophomore; etc.

Although the deviations in the case of the freshmen of type II and type III are rather large, they are still small enough to assume that academic classification does not influence the validity of the study to any great extent.

CONTROL OF THE SEX FACTOR

Table X, Distribution of Cases in the Types of Workers According to Sex, shows that the per cents of the men and women in the three types of workers are similar. It may be observed that 39.3 per cent of type I (non-campus workers), and 44.5 per cent each of type II (State workers) and type III

TABLE X

	Total cases		TTTTA T		Type II		Type III	
Sex	No. of cases	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	Ŗ
Male	151	42	75	38.3	40	44.5	36	44.5
Female	211	58	116	60.7	50	55.5	45	55.5
Total	362		191		90		81	

DISTRIBUTION OF CASES IN THE TYPES OF WORKERS ACCORDING TO SEX

Read table thus: Of the 151 males, 75 were type I, 40 were type II, and 36 were type III; of the total cases 151 or 42 per cent were males and 211 or 58 per cent were females; etc.

(Federal workers) were men. Thus, type I deviated by 2.7 per cent from the per cent of males in the entire study, and types II and III by 2.5 per cent each.

DECILE GROUPS

Table XI shows the distribution in the decile groups for each type of worker. Considering the differences, in the

TABLE XI

DISTRIBUTION OF CASES IN THE DECILE GROUPS FOR EACH TYPE OF WOPKER

Decile	No. Cases	Type I		Type II		Type III	
		No.	%	No.	%	No.	%
X IX VIII VII VI VI VI IV IV III III II	50 45 33 36 42 39 32 27 32 26	21 18 18 17 15 22 24 16 19 21	11.0 9.4 9.4 8.9 7.9 11.5 12.6 8.4 9.9 11.0	15 15 7 10 15 8 3 8 8 1	16.7 16.7 7.7 11.1 16.7 8.9 3.3 8.9 8.9 1.1	14 12 9 12 5 5 4	17.3 14.8 9.9 11.1 14.8 11.1 6.2 3.7 6.2 4.9
Total	362	191		90		81	

Read table thus: Of the 50 cases in decile X, 21 were type I, 15 were type II, and 14 were type III; 11.0 per cent of type I, 16.7 per cent of type II, and 17.3 per cent of type III were in decile X; etc. per cent columns, between the types within a decile group, there are three differences--the difference between types I and II, between types I and III, and between types II and III. Therefore, there is a total of thirty differences for the ten deciles. Of these thirty, nine have a difference of less than 2; nineteen less than 5; twenty-six less than 7; and thirty, or all, have differences of less than 10. The largest difference exists between type I (non-campus workers) and type II (State workers) in decile I; the difference between 11.0 per cent and 1.1 per cent being 9.9 per cent. The difference between the per cents of workers in type II and type III (Federal workers) in decile VII is zero; each has a per cent of 11.1.

Thus it is seen that the per cents of the three types of employees are represented fairly uniformly in the decile groups. It would appear that no type has a decided advantage as far as decile rank is concerned. Substantiation for this assumption was found when the averages of the percentile ranks for the students within each type were computed. The average percentile rank for type I was found to be 54; for type II, 66; and for type III, 59.

MEDIAN MARK INDICES AND CRITICAL RATIO VALUES

The median mark index for type I (non-campus workers) was found to be 2.83 \pm .06; for type II (State workers),

with a critical ratio of 3.54, or there are 99 chances in 100 that a true difference greater than zero exists. Type III (C. S. E. P. employees) also exceeds type I with a critical ratio of 3.54, or a reliability of 99 chances in 100. The critical ratio of type II and type III is zero, indicating that the chances are 50 in 100 that a true difference greater than zero exists between the two medians.

As was the case in Chapter III, the plus and minus signs of the critical ratios were so arranged that when type II exceeded type I it meant that the students in type II had a better scholastic record than did the students of type I; i. e., had a lower median mark index.

Thus, considering the total cases in each type, it has been shown that both the Federal and State employees exceed the non-campus employees in scholastic success. This is probably due to the requirement that State and Federal workers must attain an average scholastic record in order to remain employed; whereas the non-campus workers are under no such requirement. The reliabilities of the differences of the medians are highly significant, as there are 100 chances in 100, in each case, that a true difference greater than zero exists. Furthermore, it has been shown that the Federal and State employed students attained the same scholastic record. Thus, the reliability of the difference between the medians is not significant.

SUBMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

1. The rankings of the three types of workers for the total cases in each type in regard to scholastic success were as follows: Type II (State employees) and type III (Federal employees) tied for first, and type I (non-campus employees) ranked third. The requirement that State and Federal workers attain an average scholastic record may have influenced the rankings.

2. The critical ratios between type I and the other two types were 3.54, indicating a high reliability in the rankings. Since type II and type III had the same median mark indices, their critical ratio was necessarily zero.

3. There was a fairly uniform distribution of cases from the different types of workers in the decile groups; hence the types were similar in regard to ability as measured by college entrance examinations.

4. The per cents of male students in the three types of workers were quite similar; therefore, it may be concluded that sex did not influence the results of the study.

5. The per cents of the freshmen, sophomores, juniors, and seniors in the three types of workers were similar; therefore, it may be concluded that academic classification did not influence the results of the study.

CHAPTER V

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

There was very little difference in the distribution of cases in the ten decile groups in any part of this study. No one class or type of worker profited materially by having a disproportionate share of cases in the higher ability groups as measured by the college entrance examinations.

The ranking of the classes of workers, as measured by scholastic success in college, was as follows: Class B (composed of students working from six to twenty-one hours a week), first; class C (composed of students working twentyfour or more hours a week), second; and class A (composed of non-workers--zero to three hours a week), third. There was only a slight difference in the scholastic achievement of class B and class C.

The various types of employees ranked as follows: Type II (State employees) and type III (Federal employees) tied for first; type I (non-campus employees) ranked third.

Thus, it is seen that campus workers (State and Federal employees) working from six to twenty-one hours a week should have a slightly better scholastic record than any other combination. However, since the differences between the median mark indices of the various groups are small--being less than four-tenths of a grade point in all cases--the scholastic records of any of the types or classes should not differ materially.

Comparisons with critical ratios of 2.0 or greater are significant, giving a reliability of from 98 to 100 chances in 100 of a true difference greater than zero existing. Critical ratios of 1.0 or less have little reliability of a true difference greater than zero. In this study of the thirtysix critical ratios computed, nine reached or exceeded 2.0, and seven more exceeded 1.0.

Class A (non-workers) and type I (non-campus workers), ranking lowest in their respective divisions, had the same medians with reliabilities of 100 and 99 chances in 100 respectively. This seems to indicate that the requirement that an average scholastic record be maintained in order to remain employed is an incentive to scholastic success. Thus the presence of State and Federal workers in classes B (moderate workers) and C (hard workers) may account for the higher grades of these two classes. Furthermore, the working students may have had a greater seriousness of purpose, or may have applied themselves to their academic tasks with greater intensity, then the non-working students.

Similar studies could be carried out in other colleges. With a large number of cases, conclusions could be made with greater confidence in the reliability of the results. Predictions could be made with a high degree of accuracy concerning the chances for scholastic success of

employed and non-employed students. Thus, the advisability of working or not working while attending college could be determined conclusively.

The final conclusion may well be that engaging in nonacademic work while attending the Kansas State Teachers College was not detrimental to scholastic success; in fact, scholastic achievement seemed to be slightly reised.

A study to determine if non-academic work is more or less detrimental or beneficial to the scholastic success of male or female students might well be carried out.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

A. BOOKS

Canfield, James Hulme, The College Student and His Problems. New York: The Macmillan Company, 1902. 197 pp.

Contains suggestions about fraternities, athletics, choice of one's life work, college expenses, etc.

Ceuss, Christian, Life in College. New York: Charles Scribner's Sons, 1930. 272 pp.

Advice offered on getting the freshman started, college problems, problems of parents; appendix concerns financial problems. Section on "Self-supporting College Students," pp. 267-272, especially good.

Garrett, Henry E., Statistics in Psychology and Education. New York: Longmans, Green and Co., 1926. 317 pp.

An excellent book on statistics in psychology and education.

Wilson, Calvin Dill, Working One's Way Through College and University. Chicago: A. C. McClurg & Co., 1912. 381 pp.

A guide to paths and opportunities to earn an education at American colleges and universities. Chapter XIV, pp. 131-138, discusses working and scholarship.

B. PERIODICALS

Aden, Fred E., "Some facts related to student life as found in a survey at the University of Colorado, March, 1933." School and Society, 39:182-183, February 10, 1934.

This survey includes facts on work, finance, extracurricular activities, fraternities, sororities, scholarship, etc.

"Admission of unemployed students to the University of Minnesota." School and Society, 39:9, January 6, 1934.

Admissions possible because of federal eid.

Angell, Robert C., "The trend toward greater maturity among undergraduates due to the depression." <u>School and Society</u>, 38:391-396, September 23, 1933.

Students, under Angell, investigated the attitudes of the undergraduates by: (1) securing of judgments, and (2) by gathering relative facts; includes data on academic work, reading habits, dating, conversation, etc.

Crawford, Albert Beecher, "The scholarship racket." The Saturday Evening Post, 207:27, 103-104, 106, 109-110, April 6, 1935.

Discusses the basis for selecting students for scholarships; English plan on intellect, American plan on need.

"Difficulties of self-supporting students at Yale University." School and Bociety, 36:748, December 10, 1932.

Gives statistics on student finances and employment.

Elliott, Frank R., "Uncle Sam's call to college." The Literary Digest, 118:24, September 15, 1934.

F. E. R. A. grant to finance necessary part-time work on the nation's compuses enabled one hundred thousand students to attend universities.

Fallows, Alice Katharine, "Working one's way through college." The Century Magazine, 40:163, 177, June, 1901.

Situation at the beginning of the century. Takes up different kinds of employment, a worker's scholarship, social life, etc.

Fallows, Alice Katharine, "Working one's way through women's colleges." The Century Magazine, 40:323-341, July, 1901.

Particular difficulties for women student workers. House work the most common employment.

"Federal aid for college students." School and Society, 40:86, July 21, 1934.

Deals especially with the expansion of the kind of work that could be done under F. E. R. A. in colleges. "Federal aid for schools and college students." School and Society, 39:170, February 10, 1934.

Tells of grant made to keep elementary and secondary schools from closing, and about plans for federal assistance to college and university students.

"Federal relief for colleges." The Commonweal, 21:94, November 16, 1934.

An explanation of federal aid supplementing rether than displacing previous college employment.

Greenleaf, Walter J., "Aiding college students." School Life, 20:110-111, January, 1935.

Includes table of distribution of F. E. R. A. funds in colleges by type of college.

Henna, Hugh S., editor, "Federal aid for needy college and university students." <u>Monthly Lebor Review</u>, 40:292-293, February, 1935.

Includes table of distribution of F. E. R. A. funds in colleges by states.

Kendel, I. L., "Universities and the economic depression." School and Society, 38:585-588, November 4, 1933.

A paper read before the universities section of the World Federation of Education Associations. Duty of the university.

Lewis, Orlando F., "The self-supporting student in American colleges." The North American Review, 179:718-740, November, 1904.

Statistics and opinions concerning various phases of the subject--general subjective estimates of American college presidents.

Lindley, E. H., "Relief jobs keep many students in college." The Literary Digest, 117:9, May 26, 1934.

Summation of F. E. R. A.'s schievements of the school year 1933-1934.

Lindley, Ernest R., "The Civilian Conservation Corps." School and Society, 41:578-580, April 27, 1935. Contains figures showing the relative expense the C. C. C. and the C. S. E. P. are to the government.

Millar, John H., "Workships." School Life, 20:14-15, September, 1934.

John H. Miller, F. E. R. A. educational assistant, points out the advantages of the "Town-Gown" cooperation under C. S. E. P.

"Regulations governing federal aid to students." <u>School and</u> Society, 40:178-179, August 11, 1934.

Title suggest material presented.

Sharpe, Russell T., "College and the poor boy." Atlantic Monthly, 151:696-705, June, 1933.

An excellent study, includes history, arguments against educating the "masses" in college, etc.,

Thompson, Warren E., "College youth discusses itself." New Outlook, 161:41-43, December, 1932.

The effect of the depression on American undergraduates discussed by an undergraduate.

Turner, Fred H., "Students of the depression." The Saturday Evening Post, 207:12-12, 72, 74, 76-77, February 2, 1935.

An entertaining article, personal essay style, dealing with various aspects of college life affected by the depression--poverty among students, fraternities, employment, etc.

Van Deusen, Clinten Sheldon, "Federal Educational Recovery Act in our colleges." Industrial Education Magazine, 37:137-139, May, 1935.

Advocates a permanent continuation of aid to students.

C. PARTS OF SERIES

Evenden, Edward S., Guy C. Gamble, and Harold C. Blue, <u>National</u> <u>Survey of the Education of Teachers</u>. Bulletin 1933, No. 10, vol. II. Washington, D. C. : United States Covernment Printing Office, 1933. 258 pp. A comprehensive survey, as would be expected.

Greenleaf, Walter J., <u>Self-Help for College Students</u>. United States Department of the Interior, Bureau of Education Bulletin (1929)--No. 2. Washington, D. C.: United States Government Frinting Office, 1929. 137 pp.

Title suggests material available. Statistics.

Reynolds, O. Edgar, The Social and Economic Status of College Students. Teachers College Contributions to Education, No. 272. New York: Teachers College, Columbia University, 1927. 57 pp.

Takes up parental occupations of college students, parental income, size of families, employment of students, etc.

D. UNFUELISHED MATERIALS

Canon, Ernest E., Some Studies in the Registrar's Office. Unpublished Master's thesis, University of Kentucky, Lexington, Kentucky, 1925. 68 pp.

The part of the thesis concerning employed students is taken up from the viewpoint of the per cent of employed students on probation.

INDEX

JM .

Academic Classification	Sharpe 12,15
6,16-17,29,31-33,38	Study, the
Canon 3	Control 5
Classes of workers	Procedure 6
Definition 6,16	Furpose 5
Rankings . 22-23,27-28,39	Telsted 1
Treatment 16-28	Scope 5
Conant 2	Thompson 13
Crewford 2	Туре
Critical Ratio 7,23-28	Definition 7,30
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	Rankings
Decile Groups 6,19,22-23	Treatment
Entrance Examination 8,9	Wilson 1
Fallows	
Garrett 7	
Greenleaf 12,15	
Median mark index 20-23,35	
Needy college students,	
prevalence of 10-15	
Neutral zones 16	
Probable error 7,22-23,35	
Reynolds 12,15	•

. . 6,18-20,33-34

Ser . .